
AGENDA 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD FEBRUARY 4, 2010 

 
 
Meeting called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Aaron Prince. 
 
Opening prayer and pledge of allegiance to flag led by Commissioner James Allen. 
 
Roll call. 
 
 
Approval of minutes of January 7, 2010 meeting 
  
City Manager’s report 
 
 

  
 

Citizens Comments 
 
 
Old Business: 

 
1. Ordinance 390 – Slum Clearance Ordinance 
2. Ordinance 391– Appoint BOZA separate from Planning Commission 

 
 
New Business: 
 
 

  
3. Ordinance 392 - Slum Clearance Ordinance (McClung) 
4. Resolution 103 – Establish a Design Review Commission 
5. Discussion – Wireless Water Meter proposals 
 

 
 


	Citizens Comments




13-7-205. Board of appeals — Creation — Appointment of members — Terms — 
Rules governing organization —Training and continuing education. — 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


(a)  (1) The chief legislative body may create a board of zoning appeals of three (3) or 
five (5) members, may specify the mode of appointment of members of such board and 
their terms, which terms shall be of such length and so arranged that the term of one (1) 
member shall expire each year, or the chief legislative body may designate the planning 
commission of the municipality as the board of zoning appeals. The compensation of 
the members of the board shall be as affixed by the chief legislative body; provided, 
that in those counties having a metropolitan government the chief legislative body may 
create a board of three (3), five (5), seven (7), or nine (9) members, at least two (2) of 
whom shall be selected from minorities as well as members of the sex which 
historically have been under-represented on the board of zoning appeals, subject to the 
provisions of this section. 


 








 


 
   


6-54-133. Design review commission — Authority — Members — Appeal of decisions. —


Any municipality may create a design review commission (DRC) having the authority to develop
general guidelines for the exterior appearance of nonresidential property, multiple family residential
property, and any entrance to a nonresidential development within the municipality. The municipal
governing body may designate the planning commission as the DRC. When the municipality creates a
separate DRC, the mayor shall appoint the members of the DRC from residents of the municipality and
shall strive to ensure that the membership is representative of the municipality as a whole, including, if
possible, members with either architectural or engineering knowledge, or any other person having
experience in nonresidential building. Any property owner affected by the guidelines may appeal a
decision of the DRC to the municipality's planning commission or, if there is no planning commission or
if the municipality has designated the planning commission as the DRC, to the municipality's governing
body. 
[Acts 2008, ch. 1049, § 1.] 


Page 1 of 1Michie's Legal Resources


1/27/2010http://www.michie.com/tennessee/lpext.dll/tncode/3c3f/4386/4512/451c/45e1?f=templates...








MINUTES BOARD OF COMM JANUARY 7 2010 


 
 
 
 
 


MINUTES BOARD OF COMMISSIONER MEETING 
CITY OF LAKEWOOD JANUARY 7, 2010 


 
 
 
Meeting called to order at 6:35 p.m. by Mayor Aaron Prince. 
 
Opening prayer and pledge of allegiance to flag led by Commissioner James Allen. 
 
Roll call included Mayor Aaron Prince, Vice Mayor April Consulo, Commissioners James Allen, 
John McClung and Cathy McKellar all present.  Also present were City Manager Bobby 
Franklin, City Attorney Louis Oliver, and City Recorder Alicia Prince. 
 
Minutes of the December 3rd, 2009 meeting were approved as written on motion made by 
Commissioner Cathy McKellar, and second by Commissioner April Consulo.  All members 
voted aye with the exception of Commissioner John McClung who abstained due to the fact that 
he was absent at that meeting. 
 
City Manager Franklin began his report by informing the Board that he had given them the 
audited copy of last years budget and had been sent to the State as required. He stated that we 
were doing better this year than last year. He announced that anyone who would like to view the 
City’s financial information could do so on the City website. At this time he asked Mayor Prince 
to present Chief K.D. Smith with the diploma he earned at the Command and Leadership class he 
attended for 10 weeks given by Northwestern University. 
 
Chief Smith accepted his diploma and stated that it was a tough ten-week class which included 
nineteen exams and that they earned 23.1 college credit hours during the course. 
 
Mayor Prince gave the bank balances as follows:  General with $214,632.23, Water with 
$239.615.06, Street Aid with $7,458.96 and the Drug Fund with $16,950.28 totaling 
$478,656.53. 
 
Chief Smith gave his report and stats. 
 
The public hearing for Ordinance #389, rezone request from residential to commercial limited 
for 100 Fields Dr. was opened at 6:49 p.m.. 
 
The owner of 100 Fields Dr., Scott Hopkins stated that he was requesting the zone change so that 
he could move his business and reside at this location. 
 


 1







MINUTES BOARD OF COMM JANUARY 7 2010 


Mr. Mike Newman of 232 Ashawn stated that he lived adjacent to the property in question and 
his concern was his property value and how this zoning change would affect it. He explained that 
he did not understand the process of the rezoning request. 
 
Mayor Prince explained that the rezone request was for Commercial Limited which limits the 
types of businesses that can go in the location as opposed to strictly Commercial.  He explained 
that the rezone request goes before the Planning Commission, the Planning Commission then 
makes a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners and the Board of Commissioners 
makes the decision. He continued by explaining that the Planning Commission recommended to 
the Board of Commissioners that the rezone request be approved, the Board of Commissioners 
had approved the request on first reading, and then there is a public hearing to hear comments 
before a final decision is made. 
 
With no other citizen comments, the public hearing closed at 7:00 p.m. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner McKellar to rezone 100 Fields Dr. to “Commercial 
Limited”, passing Ordinance #389 on final reading.  Vice Mayor Consulo second the motion and 
all members voted aye. 
 
At this time, Mayor Prince opened the floor to citizens who wished to speak. 
 


1. Valerie Blackburn of 111 Riner stated: “First let me ask that the minutes of this 
meeting be recorded verbatim in the official city record. Second to address the 
content of you slum lord ordinance and some facts that this Board should know 
before you pass any legislation pertaining to or harming the city. 1. 30% of the 
children in this city are poor. 2. 24% are disabled males. 3. 14% are disabled females. 
4. 31.2% are poor females. 5. 54.8% are renting poor, 18% of people living here are 
below the poverty level, this being said, Aaron yourself told me Monday that you 
needed to protect the city. At what point does the elected officials protect it’s people? 
This ordinance is a socio-economic cleansing of it’s resident’s and businesses.” 


2. David Corley, 110 McArthur spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
3. Robert Sellers, 331 Pitts Ave. requested that they put off passing the ordinance for 


those who don’t have computers. 
4. Margaret Cook, 22nd and OHB spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
5. Jeff Hardaway, 307 28th St. spoke in favor of the slum clearance ordinance. 
6. Bryan Jakes, 3215-B Lakeshore Dr. spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
7. Bart Bagsby, owns Marina, spoke in favor of the slum clearance ordinance. 
8. Bill Jakes, 3213 Lakeshore, spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
9. Tim McMahon, 108 Clifton Ct., spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
10. Missy McInturf, of 2001, 2003, 3808,3810-12 & 3816 Old Hickory Blvd. read a 


statement and requested the City Recorder enter it as written and spoken into the 
minutes of record. Statement is attached. 


11. Ray Carver of 2005-A Hadley spoke against the ordinance and stated that he agreed 
with Missy McInturf 100%. 


12. Annie Phillips, 2005-A Hadley spoke against the ordinance. 
13. Lester Dill, 3209 Old Hickory Blvd spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 


 2







MINUTES BOARD OF COMM JANUARY 7 2010 


14. Bob Hunley, 2215 Hadley spoke against the slum clearance ordinance and stated that 
he agreed with Missy McInturf 100%. 


15. Ronald Foster, 214 Anthony, spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
16. Scott Hopkins was listed to speak but had already left the meeting. 
17. Wayne Woodard, 127 Rifle Range spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
18. James Frogge, 2206 Hadley spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
19. Dr. Marion Wilson, spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
20. Carl Armstrong, 2009 Hadley Ave. gave his time to Dr. Wilson to speak. 
21. Ronaldo Bullentini, 116 Rifle Range spoke in favor of the slum clearance ordinance. 
22. Johnny Ellis, 2217 Old Hickory Blvd. spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
23. Jeff Houghton, 2403 Elliott, spoke against the slum clearance ordinance and stated 


that his mother, who was unable to attend due to the weather, was also against the 
slum clearance ordinance. 


24. Mr. Joseph Stephens, 203 30th St.  
25.  Candy Thomas, 405 28th St., spoke against the slum clearance ordinance. 
26. Cindy Montgomery, 408 28th St. spoke in favor of the slum clearance ordinance. 


 
Commissioner McClung made a motion to defer Ordinance #390, the slum clearance ordinance. 
Commissioner Allen second the motion. At this time, there was discussion amongst the Board. 
 
 
Commissioner Allen withdrew his second to defer Ordinance #390, and Commissioner McClung 
withdrew his motion to defer Ordinance #390. Commissioner McClung then made a motion to 
defer Ordinance #390, an ordinance amending the Lakewood Municipal code my adding Chapter 
6 to Title 4, Building, Utility, and housing in order to reduce the hazards of fire accidents or 
other calamities, lack of ventilation, light or sanitary dwellings unsafe or unsanitary, or 
dangerous or detrimental to the health, safety and morals or otherwise inimical to the welfare of 
the residents of the town and providing for a penalty for enforcement.  Commissioner Allen 
second the motion to defer Ordinance #390, and Commissioner McKellar voted aye to defer. 
Mayor Prince and Vice Mayor Consulo opposed to defer making the final vote 3 to 2 and motion 
passed. 
 
Next was Resolution #101, a resolution amending Resolution #77-A by placing citizen comment 
time before the agenda items.  Commissioner Allen made a motion to accept Resolution #101, 
Commissioner McKellar second the motion and all members voted aye. 
 
Next was Resolution #102, a resolution authorizing the City Manager to upgrade the hardware 
and software used for the general accounting and water distribution billing for the City of 
Lakewood.  Commissioner McClung made a motion to accept Resolution #102, Commissioner 
Allen second the motion and all members voted aye. 
 
There was discussion concerning the Board of Zoning Appeals being different members than the 
Planning Commission. Mayor Prince made a motion to approve establishing a separate Board of 
Zoning Appeals of five members.  Commissioner Allen second the motion, with all members 
voting aye, the motion passed on first reading. 
 


 3







MINUTES BOARD OF COMM JANUARY 7 2010 


 4


With no further business, a motion was made, at 9:30 p.m. to adjourn the meeting, by 
Commissioner Allen, second by Commissioner McKellar, all members voting aye. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________   _________________________________  
City Recorder              Mayor 








 
ORDINANCE 390 


 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LAKEWOOD MUNICIPAL CODE BY 
ADDING CHAPTER 6 TO TITLE 4, BUILDING, UTILITY, AND HOUSING IN 
ORDER TO REDUCE THE HAZARDS OF FIRE, ACCIDENTS OR OTHER 
CALAMITIES, LACK OF VENTILATION, LIGHT OR SANITARY 
FACILITIES, OR DUE TO OTHER CONDITIONS RENDERING SUCH 
DWELLINGS UNSAFE OR UNSANITARY, OR DANGEROUS OR 
DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEALTH, SAFETY AND MORALS OR OTHERWISE 
INIMICAL TO THE WELFARE OF THE RESIDENTS OF THE TOWN AND 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY FOR ENFORCEMENT 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Lakewood as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Title 4, Building, Utility, and Housing is hereby amended by 
adding Chapter 6 to read in its entirety as follows: 
 


CHAPTER 6 
 


SLUM CLEARANCE 
 
SECTION 
4-601. Findings of board. 
4-602. Definitions. 
4-603. "Public officer" designated; powers. 
4-604. Initiation of proceedings; hearings. 
4-605. Orders to owners of unfit structures. 
4-606. When public officer may repair, etc. 
4-607. When public officer may remove or demolish. 
4-608. Lien for expenses; sale of salvage materials; other powers not limited. 
4-609. Basis for a finding of unfitness. 
4-610. Service of complaints or orders. 
4-611. Enjoining enforcement of orders. 
4-612. Additional powers of public officer. 
4-613. Powers conferred are supplemental. 
4-614. Structures unfit for human habitation deemed unlawful. 
 
4-601. Findings of board. Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, § 13-21-101, et 
seq., the City Commission finds that there exists in the city structures which are 
unfit for human occupation or use due to dilapidation, defects increasing the 
hazards of fire, accident or other calamities, lack of ventilation, light or sanitary 
facilities, or due to other conditions rendering such dwellings unsafe or unsanitary, 
or dangerous or detrimental to the health, safety and morals, or otherwise inimical 
to the welfare of the residents of the city. 
 







4-602. Definitions. (1) "Dwelling" means any building or structure, or part thereof, 
used and occupied for human occupation or use or intended to be so used, and 
includes any outhouses and appurtenances belonging thereto or usually enjoyed 
therewith. 
 
(2) "Governing body" shall mean the City Commission charged with governing the 
city. 
 
(3) "Municipality" shall mean the City of Lakewood, Tennessee, and the areas 
encompassed within existing town limits or as hereafter annexed. 
 
(4) "Owner" shall mean the holder of title in fee simple and every mortgagee of 
record. 
 
(5) "Parties in interest" shall mean all individuals, associations, corporations and 
others who have interests of record in a dwelling and any who are in possession 
thereof. 
 
(6) "Place of public accommodation" means any building or structure in which 
goods are supplied or services performed, or in which the trade of the general public 
is solicited. 
 
(7) "Public authority" shall mean any housing authority or any officer who is in 
charge of any department or branch of the government of the city or state relating 
to health, fire, building regulations, or other activities concerning structures in the 
city. 
 
(8) "Public officer" shall mean the officer or officers who are authorized by this 
chapter to exercise the powers prescribed herein and pursuant to Tennessee Code 
Annotated, § 13-21-101, et seq. 
 
(9) "Structure" means any dwelling or place of public accommodation or vacant 
building or structure suitable as a dwelling or place of public accommodation. 
 
4-603. "Public officer" designated; powers. There is hereby designated and 
appointed a "public officer," to be the building official of the city, to exercise the 
powers prescribed by this chapter, which powers shall be supplemental to all others 
held by the building official. 
 
4-604. Initiation of proceedings; hearings. Whenever a petition is filed with the 
public officer by a public authority or by at least five (5) residents of the city 
charging that any structure is unfit for human occupancy or use, or whenever it 
appears to the public officer (on his own motion) that any structure is unfit for 
human occupation or use, the public officer shall, if his preliminary investigation 
discloses a basis for such charges, issue and cause to be served upon the owner of, 
and parties in interest of, such structure a complaint stating the charges in that 







respect and containing a notice that a hearing will be held before the public officer 
(or his designated agent) at a place therein fixed, not less than ten (10) days nor 
more than thirty (30) days after the service of the complaint; and the owner and 
parties in interest shall have the right to file an answer to the complaint and to 
appear in person, or otherwise, and give testimony at the time and place fixed in the 
complaint; and the rules of evidence prevailing in courts of law or equity shall not 
be controlling in hearings before the public officer. 
 
4-605. Orders to owners of unfit structures. If, after such notice and hearing as 
provided for in the preceding section, the public officer determines that the 
structure under consideration is unfit for human occupation or use, he shall state in 
writing his finding of fact in support of such determination and shall issue and cause 
to be served upon the owner thereof an order: 
 
(1) If the repair, alteration or improvement of the structure can be made at a 
reasonable cost in relation to the value of the structure (not exceeding fifty percent 
[50%] of the reasonable value), requiring the owner, within the time specified in the 
order, to repair, alter, or improve such structure to render it fit for human 
occupation or use or to vacate and close the structure for human occupation or use; 
or 
 
(2) If the repair, alteration or improvement of said structure cannot be made at a 
reasonable cost in relation to the value of the structure (not to exceed fifty percent 
[50%] of the value of the premises), requiring the owner within the time specified in 
the order, to remove or demolish such structure. 
 
4-606. When public officer may repair, etc. If the owner fails to comply with the 
order to repair, alter, or improve or to vacate and close the structure as specified in 
the preceding section hereof, the public officer may cause such structure to be 
repaired, altered, or improved, or to be vacated and closed; and the public officer 
may cause to be posted on the main entrance of any dwelling so closed, a placard 
with the following words: "This building is unfit for human occupation or use. The 
use or occupation of this building for human occupation or use is prohibited and 
unlawful." 
 
4-607. When public officer may remove or demolish. If the owner fails to comply 
with an order, as specified above, to remove or demolish the structure, the public 
officer may cause such structure to be removed and demolished. 
 
4-608. Lien for expenses; sale of salvaged materials; other powers not limited. The 
amount of the cost of such repairs, alterations or improvements, or vacating and 
closing, or removal or demolition by the public officer shall be assessed against the 
owner of the property, and shall upon the filing of the notice with the office of the 
Register of Deeds of Davidson County, be a lien on the property in favor of the 
municipality, second only to liens of the state, county and municipality for taxes, any 
lien of the municipality for special assessments, and any valid lien, right, or interest 







in such property duly recorded or duly perfected by filing, prior to the filing of such 
notice. These costs shall be collected by the municipal tax collector or county trustee 
at the same time and in the same manner as property taxes are collected. If the 
owner fails to pay the costs, they may be collected at the same time and in the same 
manner as delinquent property taxes are collected and shall be subject to the same 
penalty and interest as delinquent property taxes. In addition, the town may collect 
the costs assessed against the owner through an action for debt filed in any court of 
competent jurisdiction. The town may bring one (1) action for debt against more 
than one or all of the owners of properties against whom said costs have been 
assessed and the fact that multiple owners have been joined in one (1) action shall 
not be considered by the court as a misjoinder of parties. If the structure is removed 
or demolished by the public officer, he shall sell the materials of such structure and 
shall credit the proceeds of such sale against the cost of the removal or demolition, 
and any balance remaining shall be deposited in the Chancery Court of Davidson 
County by the public officer, shall be secured in such manner as may be directed by 
such court, and shall be disbursed by such court to the person found to be entitled 
thereto by final order or decree of such court. Nothing in this section shall be 
construed to impair or limit in any way the power of the City of to define and 
declare nuisances and to cause their removal or abatement, by summary 
proceedings or otherwise. 
 
4-609. Basis for a finding of unfitness. The public officer defined herein shall have 
the power and may determine that a structure is unfit for human occupation or use 
if he finds that conditions exist in such structure which are dangerous or injurious 
to the health, safety or morals of the occupants or users of such structure, the 
occupants or users of neighboring structures or other residents of the City of 
Lakewood.   Such conditions may include the following (without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing): defects therein increasing the hazards of fire, accident, 
or other calamities; lack of adequate ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities; 
dilapidation; disrepair; structural defects; or uncleanliness. 
 
4-610. Service of complaints or orders. Complaints or orders issued by the public 
officer pursuant to this chapter shall be served upon persons, either personally or by 
registered mail, but if the whereabouts of such persons are unknown and the same 
cannot be ascertained by the public officer in the exercise of reasonable diligence, 
and the public officer shall make an affidavit to that effect, then the serving of such 
complaint or order upon such persons may be made by publishing the same once 
each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in a newspaper printed and published in 
the city. In addition, a copy of such complaint or order shall be posted in a 
conspicuous place on premises affected by the complaint or order. A copy of such 
complaint or order shall also be filed for record in the Register's Office of Davidson 
County, Tennessee, and such filing shall have the same force and effect as other lis 
pendens notices provided by law. 
 
4-611. Enjoining enforcement of orders. Any person affected by an order issued by 
the public officer served pursuant to this chapter may file a bill in chancery court 







for an injunction restraining the public officer from carrying out the provisions of 
the order, and the court may, upon the filing of such suit, issue a temporary 
injunction restraining the public officer pending the final disposition of the cause; 
provided, however, that within sixty (60) days after the posting and service of the 
order of the public officer, such person shall file such bill in the court. 
The remedy provided herein shall be the exclusive remedy and no person affected 
by an order of the public officer shall be entitled to recover any damages for action 
taken pursuant to any order of the public officer, or because of noncompliance by 
such person with any order of the public officer. 
 
4-612. Additional powers of public officer. The public officer, in order to carry out 
and effectuate the purposes and provisions of this chapter, shall have the following 
powers in addition to those otherwise granted herein: 
 
(1) To investigate conditions of the structures in the city in order to determine which 
structures therein are unfit for human occupation or use; 
 
(2) To administer oaths, affirmations, examine witnesses and receive evidence; 
 
(3) To enter upon premises for the purpose of making examination, provided that 
such entry shall be made in such manner as to cause the least possible inconvenience 
to the persons in possession and in compliance with legal requirements for gaining 
entry; 
 
(4) To appoint and fix the duties of such officers, agents and employees as he deems 
necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter; and 
 
(5) To delegate any of his functions and powers under this chapter to such officers 
and agents as he may designate. 
 
4-613. Powers conferred are supplemental. This chapter shall not be construed to 
abrogate or impair the powers of the town with regard to the enforcement of the 
provisions of its charter or any other ordinances or regulations, nor to prevent or 
punish violations thereof, and the powers conferred by this chapter shall be in 
addition and supplemental to the powers conferred by the charter and other laws. 
 
4-614. Structures unfit for human habitation or use deemed unlawful. It shall be 
unlawful for any owner of record to create, maintain or permit to be maintained in 
the town structures which are unfit for human occupation or use due to 
dilapidation, defects increasing the hazards of fire, accident or other calamities, lack 
of ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or due to other conditions rendering such 
dwellings unsafe or unsanitary, or dangerous or detrimental to the health, safety 
and morals, or otherwise inimical to the welfare of the residents of the city. 
Violations of this section shall subject the offender to a penalty of fifty dollars 
($50.00) for each offense. Each day a violation is allowed to continue shall constitute 
a separate offense. 







 
 Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective upon final passage, the 
public welfare requiring it. 
 
Passed this: 
 
 First Reading:__________________________________ 
 Second Reading:________________________________ 
  
_____________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
Attest:____________________ 
   Recorder 
 





		CHAPTER 6

		SLUM CLEARANCE








ORDINANCE 391 
 


 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A BOARD OF ZONING APPEAL 


OTHER THAN THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 


 
WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated 13-7-205 authorizes the City of 
Lakewood to establish a Board of Zoning Appeal, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners had established the Planning 
Commission as the Board of Zoning Appeal, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners finds it is in the best interest of the city 
to establish a Board of Zoning Appeal other than the Planning Commission, and;   
             
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD, 
TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS: 


 
 Section 1.  A Board of Zoning Appeal is created other than the Planning 
Commission. 
 
          Section 2.  Members shall be appointed consistent with TCA 13-7-205. 
 
 Section 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect at the earliest date allowed by 
law, the public welfare requiring it. 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________                   __________________________ 
                City Recorder                                                         Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Reading:  January 7, 2010 
       _____________ 
 





		ORDINANCE 391










CHAPTER 4 
 


SLUM CLEARANCE1 
 
 
SECTION 
13-401. Findings of board. 
13-402. Definitions. 
13-403. "Public officer" designated; powers. 
13-404. Initiation of proceedings; hearings. 
13-405. Orders to owners of unfit structures. 
13-406. When public officer may repair, etc. 
13-407. When public officer may remove or demolish. 
13-408. Lien for expenses; sale of salvage materials; other powers not limited. 
13-409. Basis for a finding of unfitness. 
13-410. Service of complaints or orders. 
13-411. Enjoining enforcement of orders. 
13-412. Additional powers of public officer. 
13-413. Powers conferred are supplemental. 
13-414. Structures unfit for human habitation deemed unlawful. 
 


13-401. Findings of board. Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, ' 13-21-101, et 
seq., the board of commissioners finds that the possibility exists that certain city structures are 
unfit for human occupation due to dilapidation, defects increasing the hazards of fire, accident or 
other calamities, lack of ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or due to other conditions 
rendering such dwellings unsafe or unsanitary, or dangerous or detrimental to the health, safety 
and morals, or otherwise inimical to the welfare of the residents of the city. 
 


13-402. Definitions. (1) "Dwelling" means any building or structure, or part thereof, used 
and occupied for human occupation or use or intended to be so used, and includes any outhouses 
and appurtenances belonging thereto or usually enjoyed therewith. 


(2) "Governing body" shall mean the board of commissioners charged with governing  
the city. 


(3) "Municipality" shall mean the City of Lakewood Tennessee, and the areas  
encompassed within existing city limits or as hereafter annexed. 


(4) "Owner" shall mean the holder of title in fee simple and every mortgagee of  
record. 


(5) "Parties in interest" shall mean all individuals, associations, corporations and  
others who have interests of record in a dwelling and any who are in possession thereof. 


(6) "Place of public accommodation" means any building or structure in which goods  
are supplied or services performed, or in which the trade of the general public is solicited. 
                                                 


1  State law reference 
Tennessee Code Annotated, title 13, chapter 21. 


 







(7) "Public authority" shall mean any housing authority or any officer who is in  
charge of any department or branch of the government of the city or state relating to health, fire, 
building regulations, or other activities concerning structures in the city. 


(8) "Public officer" means any officer or officers of a municipality or the executive  
director or other chief executive officer of any commission or authority established by such 
municipality or jointly with any other municipality who is authorized by this chapter to exercise 
the power prescribed herein and pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated, ' 13-21-101, et.'illl. 


(9) "Structure" means any dwelling or place of public accommodation or vacant  
building or structure suitable as a dwelling or place of public accommodation. 
 


13-403. "Public officer" designated; powers. There is hereby designated and appointed 
a "public officer," to be the __________________ of the city, to exercise the powers prescribed 
by this chapter, which powers shall be supplemental to all others held by the ______________ 
 


13-404. Initiation of proceedings; hearings.  Whenever a petition is filed with the 
public officer by a public authority or by at least five (5) residents of the city charging that any 
structure is unfit for human occupancy or use, [ deleted]  the public officer shall, if his 
preliminary investigation discloses a basis for such charges, issue and cause to be served upon 
the owner of, and parties in interest of, such structure a complaint stating the charges with 
specificity and in detail in that respect and containing a notice that a hearing will be held before 
the public officer (or his designated agent) at a place therein fixed, not less than [deleted] thirty 
(30) days after the service of the complaint; and the owner and parties in interest shall have the 
right to file an answer to the complaint and to appear in person, or otherwise, and give testimony 
at the time and place fixed in the complaint; and the rules of evidence prevailing in court of law 
or equity shall [deleted] be controlling in hearings before the public officer. 
 


13-405. Orders to owners of unfit structures. If, after such notice and hearing as 
provided for in the preceding section, the board of commissioners determines that the structure 
under consideration is unfit for human occupation or use, he shall state in writing his finding of 
fact in support of such determination and shall issue and cause to be served upon the owner 
thereof an order: 


(1) if the repair, alteration or improvement of the structure can be made at a  
reasonable cost in relation to the value of the structure (not exceeding eighty percent [80%] of 
the reasonable value), requiring the owner, within the time specified in the order, to repair, alter, 
or improve such structure to render it fit for human occupation or use or to vacate and close the 
structure for human occupation or use; or 


(2) if the repair, alteration or improvement of said structure cannot be made at a  
reasonable cost in relation to the value of the structure (not to exceed eighty percent [80%] of the 
value of the premises), requiring the owner within the time specified in the order, to remove or 
demolish such structure. 
 


13-406. (a) When City may repair, etc. If the owner fails or objects to complying with 
the order to repair, alter, or improve or to vacate and close the structure as specified in the 
preceding section hereof, the public officer may recommend to the board of five (5) 
commissioners that such structure be repaired, altered, or improved, or to be vacated and closed; 
and the public officer may recommend to the board that it be posted on the main entrance of any 







dwelling so closed, a placard with the following words: "This building is unfit for human 
occupation or use. The use or occupation of this building for human occupation or use is 
prohibited and unlawful." 
 (b)   The recommendation shall not be adopted and may not be enforced unless and 
until  the board of five (5) commissioners unanimously agree to the recommendation. 
 


13-407.  (a) When public officer may remove or demolish. If the owner fails or objects 
to complying with an order, as specified above, to remove or demolish the structure, the public 
officer may recommend to the board of five (5) commissioners such structure to be removed 
and demolished. 


(b) The recommendation shall not be adopted and may not be enforced unless the 
board of five (5) commissioners unanimously agree to the recommendation. 
 


13-408. Lien for expenses; sale of salvaged materials; other powers not limited. The 
amount of the cost of such repairs, alterations or improvements, or vacating and closing, or 
removal or demolition by the public officer, as well as reasonable fees for registration, 
inspections and professional evaluations of the property, shall be assessed against the owner of 
the property, and shall upon the certification of the sum owed being presented to the municipal 
tax collector, be a lien on the property in favor of the municipality, second only to liens of the 
state, county and municipality for taxes, any lien of the municipality for special assessments, and 
any valid lien, right, or interest in such property duly recorded or duly perfected by filing, prior 
to the filing of such notice. These costs shall be collected by the municipal tax collector or 
county trustee at the same time and in the same manner as property taxes are collected. If the 
owner fails to pay the costs, they may be collected at the same time and in the same manner as 
delinquent property taxes are collected and shall be subject to the same penalty and interest as 
delinquent property taxes as set forth in Tennessee Code Annotated, '' 67-5-2010 and 
67-5-2410. In addition, the municipality may collect the costs assessed against the owner 
through an action for debt filed in any court of competent jurisdiction. The municipality may 
bring one (1) action for debt against more than one or all of the owners of properties against 
whom said costs have been assessed, and the fact that multiple owners have been joined in one 
(1) action shall not be 
considered by the court as a misjoinder of parties. If the structure is removed or demolished by 
the Commissioners, the Commissioners shall sell the materials of such structure and shall credit 
the proceeds of such sale against the cost of the removal or demolition, and any balance 
remaining shall be deposited in the chancery court of Davidson County by the Commissioners, 
shall be secured in such manner as may be directed by such court, and shall be disbursed by such 
court to the person found to be entitled thereto by final order or decree of such court. Nothing in 
this section shall be construed to impair or limit in any way the power of the City of Lakewood 
to define and declare nuisances and to cause their removal or abatement, by summary 
proceedings or otherwise. 
 


13-409. Basis for a finding of unfitness. The public officer defined herein shall have the 
power and may determine that a structure is unfit for human occupation and use only if he finds 
that conditions exist in such structure which are dangerous or injurious to the health, safety or 
morals of the occupants or users of such structure, the occupants or users of neighboring 
structures or other residents of the City of Lakewood.  Such conditions may include the 







following (without limiting the generality of the foregoing): defects therein substantially 
increasing the hazards of fire, accident, or other calamities; lack of adequate ventilation, light, or 
sanitary facilities; dilapidation; disrepair; structural defects; or uncleanliness.  The City of 
Lakewood shall have the burden of proving unfitness by clear and convincing evidence at all 
stages of all proceedings. 
 


13-410. Service of complaints or orders.  Complaints or orders issued by the public 
officer pursuant to this chapter shall be served upon persons, either personally or by registered 
mail, but if the whereabouts of such persons are unknown and the same cannot be ascertained by 
the public officer in the exercise of reasonable diligence, and the public officer shall make an 
affidavit to that effect, then the serving of such complaint or order upon such persons may be 
made by publishing the same once each week for two (2) consecutive weeks in a newspaper 
printed and published in the city. In addition, a copy of such complaint or order shall be posted 
in a conspicuous place on premises affected by the complaint or order. A copy of such complaint 
or order shall also be filed for record in the Register's Office of Davidson County, Tennessee, 
and such filing shall have the same force and effect as other lis pendens notices provided by law. 
 


13-411. Enjoining enforcement of order.  In the event any person affected by an order 
issued by the board of commissioners served pursuant to this chapter objects to the order, the 
City of Lakewood  may file a bill in chancery court for an injunction allowing the City of 
Lakewood to carry out the provisions of the order, [deleted] and the order may not be enforced  
pending the final disposition of the cause.  [deleted] 


The remedy provided herein shall be non-exclusive and any person affected by an order 
of the City shall be entitled to recover any damages and costs including reasonable attorney 
fees in the event such person prevails in the action. 
 


13-412. Additional powers of public officer.  The public officer, in order to carry out 
and effectuate the purposes and provisions of this chapter, shall have the following powers in 
addition to those otherwise granted herein: 


(1) To investigate conditions of the structures in the city in order to determine which  
structures therein are unfit for human occupation or use; 


(2) To administer oaths, affirmations, examine witnesses and receive evidence; 
(delete (3)) 
(4) To appoint and fix the duties of such officers, agents and employees as he deems  


necessary to carry out the purposes of this chapter; and 
(5) To delegate any of his functions and powers under this chapter to such officers  


and agents as he may designate. 
 


13-413. Powers conferred are supplemental.  This chapter shall not be construed to 
abrogate or impair the powers of the city with regard to the enforcement of the provisions of its 
charter or any other ordinances or regulations, nor to prevent or punish violations thereof, and 
the powers conferred by this chapter shall be in addition and supplemental to the powers 
conferred by the charter and other laws. 
 


13-414. Structures unfit for human habitation deemed unlawful.  It shall be unlawful 
for any owner of record to create, maintain or permit to be maintained in the city structures 







which are unfit for human occupation due to dilapidation, defects increasing the hazards offire, 
accident or other calamities, lack of ventilation, light or sanitary facilities, or due to other 
conditions rendering such dwellings unsafe or unsanitary, or dangerous or detrimental to the 
health, safety and morals, or otherwise inimical to the welfare of the residents of the city. 


Violations of this section shall subject the offender to a penalty under the general penalty 
provision of this code. Each day a violation is allowed to continue shall constitute a separate 
offense. 
 
 








RESOLUTION 103  
 
 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD, TENNESSEE 
ESTABLISHING A DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION.  
 
 
WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated, 6-54-133, authorizes municipalities to 
establish a Design Review Commission; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City has an interest in maintaining the aesthetic beauty of the 
community and in preserving and promoting high quality design standards;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD, 
TENNESSEE THAT:  
 
Section 1. There is hereby established a Design Review Commission for the City of 
Lakewood, Tennessee.  
 
Section 2. The Mayor shall appoint the members of the Lakewood Design Review 
Commission pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated 6-54-133.  
 
Section 3. This resolution shall take effect from and immediately after its passage, the 
public welfare requiring it.  
 
 
 
 
_____________ 
Date of Reading 
 
 
_____________ 
        Mayor  
 
 
_____________ 
  City Recorder 








 
RESOLUTION 100 


 
 


A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT A 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS TO UPGRADE THE LAKEWOOD WATER 
SYSTEM TO WIRELESS METERS   
 
 
WHEREAS; the City of Lakewood wishes to upgrade the water system, and; 
 
WHEREAS; many of the existing water meters are more than10 years old, and; 
 
WHEREAS; the City of Lakewood is under billing due to the age of those water meters, 
and; 
 
WHEREAS; It has been determined that wireless water meters can reduce meter reading 
labor costs, and; 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD, 
TENNESSEE: 
 
The Board of Commissioners of the City of Lakewood authorizes the City Manager to 
advertise a Request For Proposal (RFP) in the newspaper to find the cost for a wireless 
water meter system. 
 
If and section, clause, provision or portion of this resolution is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent, jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect any 
other section, clause, provision or portion of this resolution. 
 
This resolution shall take effect on the earliest date allowed by law. 
 
 


        
       
ADOPTION DATE: __________ 
         
 
 
      
      
____________________________                           ____________________________ 
            City Recorder                                                 Mayor     





		RESOLUTION 100






DESCRIPTION HERSEY/HAYES SOUTHERN PIPE MARS


HARDWARE/SOFTWARE


Drive-Bv Receiver


Hand Held Device


Route Mqt Software


Install Software


Training


Maint./Warrantv


transmiter


receiver Unit


data Collector


route software


Laptop


$5,450.00


$2,835


Included in Receiver


Included in Receiver


Included in Receiver


1st Yr Included


20yr-10yr prorated


$500 yr


included


included


5750.00 or Utility buy


$5830.00*


$4,720


$1,667


$1,112


Included in Install Price


1st Yr Included


10yr-10yr prorated


$480.87 yr


$575.15 yr


$600 yr


"Included in Receiver


$7,298.00


$4,522


$9869*


Included in Software


$4,800


1st Yr Included


10yr-5yr prorated


$750 yr


$275.00 y_r


$541.88 yr


included in Software


METERS


Meters/transmiters


250 Meters


500 Meters


1000 Meters


$128.25 ea


$32,062.50


$64,125.00


$128,250.00


$159.50 ea


$48,875.00


$97,750.00


$195,500.00


$149.00 ea


$39,875.00


$79,750.00


$159,500.00


Meter Install


250 meters


500 meters


1000 meters


Install time


$36.50 ea


$9,125.00


$18,250.00


$36,500.00


3-5 days


$20.00 ea


$5,000.00


$10,000.00


$20,000.00


3-5 days


$27.50 ea


$6,875.00


$13,750.00


$27,500.00


3-5 days


Total


250 meters


500 meters


1000 meters


Installation not included


$38,262.50


$70,325.00


$134,450.00


Installation not included


$57,484.00


$106,359.00


$204,109.00


installation not included


$61,842.00


$101,717.00


$181,467.00





